POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE

AGENDA

Date:

Thursday, 25th April, 2019

Time:

7.00 pm

Venue:

Guildhall

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Information for Members of the Public
Access to the Guildhall is via the front entrance in the High Street. The nearest car park is
Copenhagen Street (pay and display). If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility, access
to the Guildhall can be gained either through the door on the right side of the forecourt as you face the
Guildhall, or through the sliding doors at the rear of the Guildhall. There is dedicated disabled parking
space at the rear (access via Copenhagen Street). Most meetings are held on the ground floor, which
can be reached by using a lift. If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility and you wish to
attend a meeting, please telephone or email the officer mentioned below in advance and we will make
any necessary arrangements to assist your visit.
Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public. You have the right to inspect copies of
Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background documents used in the
preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers appear at the foot of each report. Part II
of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt Information' for which it is anticipated that
the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither reports nor background papers are open to
public inspection.
Please note that this is a public meeting and members of the public and press are permitted to report
on the proceedings. "Reporting" includes filming, photographing, making an audio recording and
providing commentary on proceedings. Any communicative method can be used to report on the
proceedings, including the internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings. Accordingly, the
attendance of members of the public at this meeting may be recorded and broadcast. By choosing to
attend this public meeting you are deemed to have given your consent to being filmed or recorded and
for any footage to be broadcast or published.
Please note the Council audio records and live streams many of its meetings. These recordings are
published on the relevant meeting pages of the Council’s website. A notice to this effect will be posted
in the meeting room. If a member of the public chooses to speak at a meeting of the City Council
he/she will be deemed to have given their consent to being recorded and audio being published live to
the Council’s website. The Chairman of the meeting, can at their discretion, terminate or suspend
recording, if in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice the proceedings of the meeting or if
they consider that continued recording might infringe the rights of any individual, or breach any
statutory provision.
At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is allowed
for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any matter on the
Agenda. Participants need to indicate that they wish to speak by 4.30 p.m. on the last working day
before the meeting by writing, telephoning or E-Mailing the officer mentioned below.
If you have any general enquires or queries about this Agenda or require any details of background
papers, further documents or information, or to discuss arrangements for the taking of photographs,
film, video or sound recording please contact the Lead Officer, Julian Pugh, Democratic Services
Administrator, Guildhall, Worcester WR1 2EY. Telephone: 01905 722027 (direct line); EMail Address: committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk.
This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of ethnic
minority languages. Please contact the above named officer for further information.
Agendas and minutes relating to all City Council Committees and Council Meetings are also available
electronically, click on the option “Committee Minutes and Documents”, Website Address:
worcester.gov.uk

2

Policy and Resources Committee
Thursday, 25 April 2019
Members of the Committee:-

Chairman: Councillor Louis Stephen (G)
Vice-Chairman: Councillor Marc Bayliss (C) and Councillor Adrian Gregson (L)
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor

Patricia Agar (LCo)
Roger Berry (LCo)
Lynn Denham (L)
Simon Geraghty (C)
Jo Hodges (L)

C= Conservative

G = Green

Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
L = Labour

Mrs. Lucy Hodgson (C)
Roger Knight (C)
Chris Mitchell (C)
Joy Squires (L)
James Stanley (C)

LCo = Labour and Co-Operative

AGENDA
Part 1
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC)
1.

Appointment of Substitutes

To receive details of any Member
nominated to attend the meeting in place of
a Member of the Committee.

2.

Declarations of Interest

To receive any declarations of interest.

3.

Public Representations

Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be
allowed, with each speaker being allocated
a maximum of five minutes, for members
of the public to present a petition, ask a
question or comment on any matter on the
Agenda or within the remit of the
Committee.

4.

Cultural Development Fund (The
Arches Worcester Project)
Funding Agreement
Page(s): 1 - 6
Ward(s): Cathedral
Contact Officer:
Helen Mole, Local
Centres Officer
Tel: 01905
722309

1. That the Committee authorises the
Corporate
Director
Finance
and
Resources
to
sign
the
Cultural
Development Fund agreement with Arts
Council England, relating to The Arches
Worcester Project;
2. That
the
Committee
agrees
to
Worcester City Council being the
accountable body for The Arches
Worcester Project; and

3

3. That the Committee delegates authority
to the Deputy Director Governance,
Corporate
Director
Finance
and
Resources and the Corporate Director
Place to enter into all necessary legal
agreements, submit applications for
relevant
consents
and
take
all
operational steps required to deliver
The Arches Worcester Project in
consultation with the Chair and Vice
Chairs of the Committee.
5.

Any Other Business

Which in the opinion of the Chairman is of
sufficient
urgency
as
to
warrant
consideration.

6.

Item Involving the Disclosure of
Exempt Information

The Committee are invited to pass the
following resolution:That under Section 100A(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972, the press and public
be excluded from the meeting for the
following item of business on the grounds
that it involves the likely disclosure of
information as defined in Schedule 12A of
the said Act.

PART II
(ITEM FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PRIVATE)
7.

Cultural Development Fund (The
Arches Worcester Project)
Funding Agreement
Page(s): 7 - 42
Ward(s): Cathedral
Contact Officer:
Helen Mole, Local
Centres Officer
Tel: 01905
722309

A copy of the draft agreement is provided
in a confidential Appendix.

4

Page 1

Agenda Item 4

Report to: Policy and Resources Committee, 25th April 2019
Report of: Corporate Director - Place

Subject:

CULTURAL DEVELOPMENT FUND (THE ARCHES WORCESTER PROJECT)
FUNDING AGREEMENT

1.

Recommendations

1.1

That the Committee authorises the Corporate Director Finance and
Resources to sign the Cultural Development Fund agreement with Arts
Council England, relating to The Arches Worcester Project;

1.2

That the Committee agrees to Worcester City Council being the accountable
body for The Arches Worcester Project; and

1.3

That the Committee delegates authority to the Deputy Director Governance,
Corporate Director Finance and Resources and the Corporate Director Place
to enter into all necessary legal agreements, submit applications for
relevant consents and take all operational steps required to deliver The
Arches Worcester Project in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chairs of
the Committee.

2.

Background

2.1

In June 2018, the Department for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport launched a fund
of £20m, open to towns and cities outside of London. The Cultural development fund
is focused on developing the economic impact of creative industries, arts and
heritage. It is administered by Arts Council England.

2.2

Following approval by the Committee on 11 September 2018, officers submitted a
bid to this fund in October 2018, in partnership led by the City Council with The
University of Worcester, Severn Arts, Network Rail and the County Council, including
a contribution of £310,000 from the City Plan Fund.

2.3

Five locations within England were offered grant support and Worcester was awarded
£3million funding towards a £4.67million project, with the remaining funds being
sourced locally from a combination of public and private sector partners.

2.4

Since the announcement in January 2019, the City Council and its partners have
been working on putting together the detailed project plan and allocating resources
for delivery.

Page 2

3.

Overview of The Arches Worcester Project

3.1

Eight newly restored Victorian railway arches will regenerate a heritage-rich part of
the city into a modern, 21st century workplace for creative industries and a cultural
destination for tourists and local communities. A new pedestrian connection will be
created between Foregate Street Station and the river via The Hive and the
University of Worcester.

3.2

The redeveloped arches will house creative businesses, a flexible public cultural
space for performances and exhibitions and a rehearsal and making space for artists
and companies.

3.3

Festivals and events need support with key skills, such as fundraising and
sponsorship; production; technology; commissioning; commercial development;
marketing and artistic programming. The project will create a Festivals Hub designed
to deliver high quality events and support event organisers across the city, the
objective being to transform Worcester’s status as a festival City.

3.4

The project aims to build long-term creative capabilities for the city through
graduate retention, a highly developed voluntary sector, training of young people
and support for creative businesses. It seeks to acknowledge the work of volunteers,
providing skills development and opportunities for growth to strengthen the sector.

3.5

It will seek to retain and nurture graduates in cultural and creative industries related
areas through entrepreneurial mentoring and progression to angel investment for
start-ups.

3.6

A programme of support will be established for young people who seek employment
in the creative industries.

3.7

The project seeks to develop the sense of place around the arches, building on
existing cultural assets in the neighbourhood including the Museum and Art Gallery,
The Art House and The Hive.

4.

Governance arrangements and Legal Agreements

4.1

The project will be managed through a series of workstreams reporting to an
Operational Board, chaired by the City Council and overseen by a Worcester Cultural
Development Fund Partnership Board, which will have City and County Council
Member representation.

4.2

Arts Council England have provided a draft funding agreement which covers:






Key milestones for the capital and revenue aspects of the project
A schedule of payments of Cultural Development Funding upon achievement of
milestones
Security over assets which have been supported by Cultural Development Fund
Grant
Arrangements to cover the use of assets supported by the grant for cultural
activity
Monitoring and Evaluation Arrangements.

Page 3

The content and requirements of the agreement have been negotiated to ensure the
programme, security and use requirements are reasonable and reflect the
programme. There are clauses within the agreement to ensure that changes to the
programme can be accommodated should they arise. A copy of the draft agreement
is provided in a confidential Appendix.
4.3

To ensure that the City Council can fulfil its responsibilities as the accountable body
for the grant, a series of agreements will be put in place with the partner
organisations including the University of Worcester, Severn Arts, The County Council,
Arch Co and Network Rail. The most significant of these at this stage are those with
the University of Worcester and Severn Arts who along with the City Council will
deliver the overall programme.

4.4

In summary, Heads of Terms for these agreements seek to:






Share / transfer the key obligations of the funding agreement
Ensure proper procurement of contracts and the employment of staff
Set out the procedures for claiming grant which will be administered by the City
Council
Confirm the resource contributions that each partner will be making
Set out the delivery timetable and clear roles and responsibilities for each phase
and element of the project.

4.5

Once the Funding and Partnership Agreements are in place a series of negotiations
will secure contractual commitments from the third party landowners in order to
release the sites for development. Contracts will also be required with design and
construction teams to deliver the capital development and associated public realm.
Additional contracts for delivery of the arts programmes will also be required.

4.6

The delivery of the capital part of the project has been structured into three phases,
reflecting three discrete zones of development. The first phase is the delivery of the
five arches which are within the University’s control, starting at the Hive. The second
two phases relate to the delivery of the arches from Farrier Street up to Foregate
Street and involve third party land interests. The phased approach will ensure that
early delivery of some key project outputs can be achieved without delay, while
allowing negotiations for later phases to progress alongside.

4.7

A number of statutory consents and permissions are required for the capital
development, including planning permission for each stage.

5.

Preferred Option

5.1

The Council will enter into agreements with the partners associated with the project
to ensure the proper use of public funds and that the objectives of the programme
are delivered.

5.2

The fund is administered by Arts Council England and is subject to their monitoring
procedures. Before funding can be released, their funding agreement must be signed
by the Council as the accountable body.

Page 4

6.

Alternative Options Considered

6.1

If the funding agreement is not signed, the funding allocation will be forfeited and
the entire project is at risk.

7.

Implications

7.1

Financial and Budgetary Implications
The total value of the project is £4.67m, of which £3m is funded by the DCMS/Arts
Council England Cultural Development Fund. Worcester City Council has committed
£310k City Plan funding to the project, as approved by the Policy & Resources
Committee on 11 September 2018 and as part of the budget report approved by Full
Council on 19 February 2019.
Worcester City Council is the accountable body and is therefore responsible for
ensuring that all costs and income are fully accounted for and is able to account to
the funding body at each stage, as required by the funding agreement and
associated schedules. Consequently the Council is responsible for managing the cash
flows associated with the project and for establishing a suitable accounting system
across all of the partners.
The CDF grant is separated into a revenue element of £1,412,634 and a capital
element of £1,587,366. The revenue grant can be drawn down as required three
times per year in advance of need, subject to evidence of progress on the various
workstreams. The Capital grant is drawn down in arrears, three times per year, on
completion of programmed works. This means that the Council will incur expenditure
for which it has not yet received funding and will have a negative cash flow at
various stages in the project. This can be planned for and managed within the
Council’s normal cash management system.
Failure to complete each capital phase may result in expenditure being incurred for
which grant may not subsequently be paid or may be clawed back. As the
accountable body, it falls to the Council to manage this risk and to establish
commitments from the partners who are responsible for each workstream, before
making claims for grant. The funding agreement has been separated into three
phases and the Arts Council have confirmed in writing that any assessment of
progress and completion will apply to each phase separately. The clawback risk
exposure can therefore be managed one phase at a time.
The City Council will enter into a commercial lease for 2 arches with Arch Co (the
long leasehold owner of the railway arches) to house cultural activity. Obligations in
the funding agreement will require the use of these arches for cultural and creative
uses to 2027. The City Council will need to secure sufficient income from tenants to
meet its lease payment obligations. The project includes some support for rental
costs until April 2022 and the commercial negotiation with Arch Co will need to
reflect the extensive capital works being undertaken with grant aid to bring the
arches in question in to use.

7.2

Legal and Governance Implications
The key legal and governance implications are set out earlier in this report. The Arts
Council funding agreement contains a series of legally binding grant conditions which
the Council must comply with in its capacity as the accountable body.

Page 5

The satisfaction of these conditions will be secured through the establishment of a
series of back-to-back agreements with the key partner organisations that are
working with the Council to deliver this project.
The Council will also need to make planning applications for the capital phases of the
project and deal with a number of other consents and permissions, working with the
other project partners.
Any significant decision for the Council which is outside the parameters of financial
commitment and/or risk set out in this report, will be brought back to Committee for
approval.
7.3

Risk Implications
The full project risk register will be regularly reviewed as part of the project
management activities. The key strategic risks for the Council are as follows:


Non-completion or significant cost overruns of all or parts of the capital works
This risk is mitigated in part by the phased approach which should ensure that
works are not entered into until all appropriate agreements and securities are
in place. This is a condition of the funding agreement.



Partnership agreements are not established and the arts festival elements
cannot be delivered.
Partnership agreements are a condition of grant funding and must be in place
prior to the first payment on 1 August 2019. Proposals for the festivals
programme will be subject to further reports for consideration by the relevant
Committee.



Earned income is not achieved, resulting in negative cashflows for the project.
The income from the converted arches falls to the property owner, with an
agreed income flow to the project to support its activities and from events and
other activities within the project. In the event that the projected income
flows do not materialise in full, costs will need to be scaled back to ensure that
the project can be delivered within the budget estimates. Earned income is
estimated to be approximately 3% of the total value of the project.



Negotiations for the second two capital phases of the project do not progress
on satisfactory terms.
The project funding has been split into three phases and so if third party
negotiations do not progress on satisfactory terms within the project
timescale, then the Council will not claim funding for that phase, and the third
party land owners will forego the opportunity of benefitting from
redevelopment of their properties and regeneration of the immediate area. In
that circumstance the Council could propose to the Arts Council a modification
to the scope of the project – for example, potentially involving different
arches, but this would require Arts Council consent and no assurances can be
given at this stage.



The longer term aims of the project are not fulfilled.
The funding agreement requires that the properties are made available to the
project for 10 years following completion. This will help to ensure that there
are long-term benefits arising from the funding and maintain the facilities to
support the festivals programme.

Page 6

7.4

Corporate/Policy Implications
The Arches Worcester Project supports all five of the City Plan themes, with
particular emphasis on becoming a Heritage City for the 21st Century and Sustaining
and Improving our Assets. The development of the Arches area from Foregate Street
to the Hive fits with the intentions set out in the Masterplan and will make a
significant contribution to the Council’s aims for the development of the City as place
for inward investment, tourism, cultural development and entrepreneurialism.

7.5

Equality Implications
There are no direct equalities implications. The development of the facilities will
adhere to Equality Act access standards.

7.6

Human Resources Implications
The project will require dedicated Project management support. This is to be
provided by the County Council as part of its contribution to the project. There will
be a demand for client-side management by the Economic Development Officer and
Finance colleagues. These posts will be back-funded from project resources as
required.

7.7

Health and Safety Implications
None directly arising from this report. Capital works will be subject to agreed health
and safety standards, signed off by the Council’s Health and Safety Officer.

7.8

Social, Environmental and Economic Implications
The project will Develop the city’s visitor economy through a destination
management plan that is aligned with the festivals and events programme and
enhances the existing strengths of the City’s cultural and heritage offering by
 Using culture and creativity to unlock economic growth and productivity
 Creating a high quality artistic festivals programme to bring in new audiences
and develop new ones
 Supporting leadership and skills development within the creative industries.

Ward(s):
Contact Officer:
Background Papers:

Cathedral
Helen Mole, 01905 722309 helen.mole@worcester.gov.uk
None

Page 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 7

This page is intentionally left blank

